
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2019\Planning Notice 10-14-19.docx 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
The City of Stoughton will hold a Regular meeting of the Plan Commission on Monday, October 14, 
2019 at 6:00 pm at the Council Chambers, Second Floor, Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth 
Street, Stoughton WI. 
 


AGENDA 
1. Call to order. 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of September 9, 2019.   
3. Council Representative Report. 
4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 
5. Request by Mary Wandtke for final condominium plat approval of the Good View Condominium, 


2209 and 2211 Wood View Drive. 
 Recommendation to Council 


6. Request by Dvorak Investments II, LLC for direct annexation of 51.315 acres of land along the 
west side of US Highway 51 north near County Highway B, from the Town of Dunn. 


 Recommendation to Council 
7. Request by Dr. Daniel Tataje of Stoughton Family Dental for approval of a projecting sign at 101 


W. Main Street. 
8. Introduce Preliminary Plat – The Meadows at Kettle Park West. 
9. The Meadows at Kettle Park West – Discuss Planned Development Standards for small lot single-


family detached district. 
10. Future agenda items. 
11. Adjournment. 
 
COMMISSIONERS:  
Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair  Tom Robinson    Tom Selsor 
Todd Barman    Tom Majewski, Vice-Chair  Phil Caravello 
Brett Schumacher 
CC: PACKETS:   
Rodney Scheel   Michael Stacey (3)   Tom Robinson 
Mayor Tim Swadley   Todd Barman    Steve Kittelson 
Tom Selsor 
E-MAIL NOTICES: 
All Department Heads   Council members   Steve Kittelson 
City Attorney Matt Dregne  Stoughton Hub   Derek Westby           
Peter Sveum    Jim Bricker    Chamber of Commerce 
Planning Commissioners  Area Townships   smonette@stolib.org 
Mary Wandtke   John Brigham    Greg Marshall 
mackenzie.krumme@wcinet.com Dr. Daniel Tataje   Dennis Steinkraus 
stoughtonreporter@wcinet.com stoughtoneditor@wcinet.com   
 
 
IF YOU ARE DISABLED AND NEED ASSISTANCE, PLEASE CALL 873-6677 PRIOR TO THE 
MEETING.   
 
NOTE: AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 








T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2019\Planning Minutes  9-9-19.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, September 9, 2019 at 6:00 pm 
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI. 
 


Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Thomas Majewski; 
Tom Robinson; Tom Selsor; and Brett Schumacher 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
Press: None 
Guests: Mary Wandtke; John Brigham; Lori Steen; Brianna Fero; Kathy Kamp; Bob Dvorak; Tyler 
Fero; Jim Glueck and Linda Muller 
 
1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of August 12, 2019. 


Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried 6 
- 0. 
 


3. Council Representative Report.  Mayor Swadley stated in absence of Caravello, the approvals 
are shown in the minutes. 
 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 
Scheel gave an overview of the current status of developments as outlined in the packet.   
 
Schumacher questioned if there could be a street project dashboard so people could find out 
information about street projects.  Scheel stated improvements can be made in the future to 
provide information. 
 


5. Request by STI Holdings, Inc. for certified survey map (CSM) approval to split the property 
at 1111 Veterans Road into 2 parcels. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Schumacher questioned access from Academy Street.  Scheel explained the access point is 
adequate for the subject property. 
 
Lori Steen of STI Holdings explained the intent to provide a site for a current supplier. 


 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM as presented, 2nd 
by Selsor.  Motion carried 6 - 0. 


 
6. Request by Mary Wandtke for preliminary condominium plat approval of the Good View 


Condominium, 2209 and 2211 Wood View Drive. 
Scheel explained the request. 


  
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
9/9/19 
Page 2 of 4 
 


Barman questioned what the Commission should be focusing on such as the condominium itself 
and/or the condominium documents.  Scheel stated his recommendation would be to focus on the 
condominium split and not all the details of the condominium documents. 


 
Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the Good View Condominium 
for Mary Wandtke at 2209 and 2211 Wood View Drive as presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion 
carried 6 - 0. 


 
7. Request by Brianna Fero for a conditional use permit for an Indoor Commercial 


Entertainment use (Gemini Games) at 193 W. Main Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Brianna Fero stated they are seeking a beer license for their business.  The business is a board 
game lounge with sales of games and Wisconsin based snacks/beverages.  The target age is 25-40 
year olds. 
 
Schumacher questioned the hours of operation.  Tyler Fero stated they anticipate later activity 
later in the day.  Ms. Fero stated they will only allow 21 year olds and up and may have special 
events for minors where the beer would be locked up. 


 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 
Barman stated the Commission is to focus on the use related to zoning and not the beer license.  
Mayor Swadley stated the Council will be reviewing the beer license tomorrow night. 


 
Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use permit to 
allow the indoor commercial entertainment use at 193 W. Main Street as presented, 2nd by 
Schumacher.   Motion carried 6 – 0. 


 
8. Request by Reyes Aranda for a conditional use permit for an Indoor Commercial 


Entertainment use (La Cantina LLC) at 620 Nygaard Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Selsor questioned if this is the same operator as the past or a new operator.  Scheel stated this is a 
new operator. 
 
Barman noted there has been a lot of turn-over for this site over the years and recommended the 
City work with the tenant to help the situation.  Scheel discussed the limitations of the site 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
9/9/19 
Page 3 of 4 
 


including location.  The group discussed the lack of access from the adjacent lot parking area.  
There is signage that can be seen from US Highway 51. 


 
Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use permit for 
an indoor commercial entertainment use at 620 Nygaard Street as presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  
Motion carried 6 - 0. 


 
9. Request by Kathy Kamp, Wisconsin Partnership for Housing Development for site plan 


approval to construct a 4-unit residential multi-plex building at 1125 W. Main Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Linda Muller spoke in favor of the request and the need to allow one less required parking stall. 
 
Kathy Kamp explained the layout and request for an exception for one less required parking stall. 
 
Barman questioned where the parking spaces are located including bike stalls.  Jim Glueck, 
Architect stated the parking spaces are in front of the garages and bike parking is identified on the 
plan.  Scheel stated parking in front of a garage is allowable by zoning. 
 
Barman suggested some lower landscaping along the east lot line to screen the parking area. 
 
Jordan Tilleson, the adjacent property owner to the east would like to see more of a sound barrier 
along the east lot line.  He stated there have been no noise complaints about his dog daycare in 4 
years and wants to keep it that way. 
 
Jim Glueck stated that landscape plantings do not reduce noise. 
 
Barman’s suggestion was only to fill the lower landscaping gap along the east lot line. 
 
Selsor suggested adding a tree along the east lot line. 
 
Kathy Kamp stated they are meeting the zoning requirements but could add a tree if necessary. 
 
Caravello arrived at 6:42 pm. 
 
Schumacher suggested the crabapples trees be lead spot resistant. 
 
Jordan Tilleson would like to discuss off-site street parking.  Mayor Swadley stated that the Public 
Safety Committee would need to review that request. 


 
Motion by Robinson to approve the site plan resolution with the 8 parking spaces as presented, 
2nd by Barman.  Motion carried 6 - 0. (Caravello abstained) 
 


10. Request by Dvorak Investments II, LLC for direct annexation of 59.355 acres of land along 
US Highway 51 north near County Highway B, from the Town of Dunn. 
Scheel explained the Department of Administration has not yet responded regarding the 
annexation so we recommend no action at this time. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
9/9/19 
Page 4 of 4 
 
11. Future agenda items. 


Preliminary plat for Kettle Park small lot subdivision. 
 
12. Adjournment. 


Motion by Schumacher to adjourn at 6:47 pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 7 – 0. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Michael Stacey 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 








S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Staff Reviews\Staff Reviews 2019\Status of development 101019.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com/planning 
 
 


 
Date:  October 8, 2019 
 
To:  Planning Commission Members 
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Status of Current Developments  
 
Status of Development: 


• Grosso units in Business Park – Site work left to do. 
• 400 S. Van Buren Street Multi-Family Project – Stormwater management, public sidewalk 


and landscaping non-compliances.  Citations issued. 
• Kettle Park Senior Living – Nearing completion. 
• Hilton Tru Hotel – Permits issued – construction to start soon. 
• Multi-Family Project at 1601 Hoel Avenue – One building nearing completion and the 


other building has started. 
• North American Fur Building – Landscaping left to do. 
• Conant Automotive Addition – Site work left to do. 
• Stoughton Utilities substation – Paving left to do. 
 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2019 
 
 


COMMERCIAL 
Building Activity 
Type 


# of Permits 
September 2019 


September $ 
Fees Collected 


YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 
Values 


Addition 0 $0 2 $2,498 $1,366,013 
New 
Construction - 
Building 


0 $0 2 $22,154 $4,343,000 


New 
Construction - 
Other 


0 $0 4 $3,936 $0 


Remodel/Repair 10 $1,245 83 $20,356 $2,844,187 
Zoning 5 $7,832 54 $34,372 $80,055 
Grand Total 15 $9,077 145 $83,316 $8,633,255 


 
 
 


RESIDENTIAL 
Building Activity 
Type 


# of Permits 
September 2019 


September $ 
Fees Collected 


YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 
Values 


Addition 6 $1,116 37 $6,033 $331,663 
New 
Construction -  
Dwelling 


1 $1,710 15 $25,405 $3,961,500 


New 
Construction - 
Other  


1 $200 4 $749 $78,000 


Remodel/Repair 42 $2,661 337 $25,590 $2,688,153 
Zoning 18 $1,200 106 $9,850 $302,647 
Grand Total 68 $6,887 499 $67,627 $7,361,963 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 City of Stoughton 
 


 


For more information, please contact: Steve Kittelson – Building Inspector 
(608) 873-7626 or skittelson@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 







City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2019 
 


 
 


 
 


 City of Stoughton              S:\Planning\Desi\Monthly Permit Report\September 2019.docx                                                            


1


4


0


1


1


1


8


43


10


11


0


6


0


1


0


1


10


42


5


18


0 10 20 30 40 50


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwelling


Commercial New Construction- Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits Issued


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Monthly Permit Data


September-19


September-18


4


23


5


17


8


7


92


335


75


76


2


37


2


15


4


4


83


337


54


106


0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwellings


Commercial New Construction - Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits 


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Yearly Permits Issued to Date


YEAR 2019


YEAR 2018








T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2019\10-14-19\Plan Info\Wandtke Condo Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
Date:  September 27, 2019 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the October 14, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting and October 22, 


2019 Common Council Meeting. 
 
Request by Mary Wandtke for final condominium plat approval of the Good View 
Condominium, 2209 and 2211 Wood View Drive. 
The owner would like to split the duplex into 2 parcels to be able to sell the units individually.  
Since the water and sewer services are not separate, the Public Service Commission rules do not 
allow the splitting of the property by parcels (zero-lot line) rather a condominium can be created 
where the water and sewer services are held in common by both owners.  The Plan Commission 
held a public hearing on September 9, 2019 and recommended Council approval of the preliminary 
condo plat.  The Common Council approved the preliminary condo plat on September 24, 2019.  
The final plat is now presented for approval with no changes recommended from the original 
preliminary plat.  All materials are provided.  A recommendation by the Plan Commission to the 
Council is necessary.       
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton Approving the  


Good View Condominium Final Plat at 2209-2211 Wood View Drive, Stoughton, WI 
 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Planning Commission recommends Council approval  – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
N/A  


File Number: 
 


- 2019 
 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS 
 


 


A. A condominium final plat titled “Good View Condominium” (the “Plat”), a copy of which 
is attached as Exhibit A was submitted by Mary Wandtke (the “Owner”) to the City of 
Stoughton (the “City”) on July 22, 2019. 
 


B. The Plat was referred to the Plan Commission for public hearing, review and 
recommendation to the City Council. 
 


C. The Plan Commission has reviewed the Plat for consistency with the City of Stoughton 
ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of Stoughton Comprehensive 
Plan and has recommended approving the Condominium Plat as presented. 
 


D. The Common Council has reviewed the Plat and the Plan Commission’s recommendation, 
and has determined that the Plat is consistent with the City of Stoughton ordinances, 
Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  
RESOLUTION 


 







 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the Condominium Final 
Plat named Good View Condominium at 2209-2211 Wood View Drive as presented. 
 


 
 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
 
            
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Wandtke Condo Final Plat Resolution.docx 
 
 
 


 







mstacey

Text Box

EXHIBIT  A























































































































































































Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan,
METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community, Parcels


2209-2211 Wood View Drive


Parcels
July 29, 2019 0 125 25062.5 Feet


¯


2209-2211







CITY OF STOUGHTON      RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT   DIRECTOR 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning     fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 
 
August 13, 2019 
 
 
Mary Wandtke 
3415 Quam Drive 
Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed Good View Condominium for 2209 and 2211 Wood View 
Drive, Stoughton, WI - Plan submitted 7/22/19.  As noted, additional information may be required to 
be provided or shown on the plan.   
 
1. The property at 2209 and 2211 Wood View Drive, Stoughton, WI is zoned TR-6 – Two-Family 


Residential. A public hearing is scheduled for September 9, 2019 regarding the preliminary 
condominium plat of which you will receive notice.  If approved, a final plat will need to be 
reviewed and approved by the Plan Commission and Common Council. 
 


2. The intent is to split the property to enable selling each side of the duplex separately.  Since the 
water and sewer service is not separate as required by ordinance to allow a zero lot line, a 
condominium platting process was chosen to split the structure while the common elements will be 
held in common by both owners or association.  The water and sewer laterals have been listed as 
common elements within the Declaration of Condominium.  The common elements are to be 
maintained by the Association. 


 
3. Once the final condominium plat is approved and recorded, a copy shall be provided to the 


Department of Planning & Development. 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner  
 


 
 


s:\planning\property log folder\2209-2211 wood view drive\condo review 8-13-19.doc 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2019\Planning Minutes  9-9-19.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, September 9, 2019 at 6:00 pm 
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI. 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Thomas Majewski; 
Tom Robinson; Tom Selsor; and Brett Schumacher 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
Press: None 
Guests: Mary Wandtke; John Brigham; Lori Steen; Brianna Fero; Kathy Kamp; Bob Dvorak; Tyler 
Fero; Jim Glueck and Linda Muller 
 
1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of August 12, 2019. 


Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried 6 
- 0. 
 


3. Council Representative Report.  Mayor Swadley stated in absence of Caravello, the approvals 
are shown in the minutes. 
 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 
Scheel gave an overview of the current status of developments as outlined in the packet.   
 
Schumacher questioned if there could be a street project dashboard so people could find out 
information about street projects.  Scheel stated improvements can be made in the future to 
provide information. 
 


5. Request by STI Holdings, Inc. for certified survey map (CSM) approval to split the property 
at 1111 Veterans Road into 2 parcels. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Schumacher questioned access from Academy Street.  Scheel explained the access point is 
adequate for the subject property. 
 
Lori Steen of STI Holdings explained the intent to provide a site for a current supplier. 


 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM as presented, 2nd 
by Selsor.  Motion carried 6 - 0. 


 
6. Request by Mary Wandtke for preliminary condominium plat approval of the Good View 


Condominium, 2209 and 2211 Wood View Drive. 
Scheel explained the request. 


  
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
9/9/19 
Page 2 of 4 
 


Barman questioned what the Commission should be focusing on such as the condominium itself 
and/or the condominium documents.  Scheel stated his recommendation would be to focus on the 
condominium split and not all the details of the condominium documents. 


 
Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the Good View Condominium 
for Mary Wandtke at 2209 and 2211 Wood View Drive as presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion 
carried 6 - 0. 


 
7. Request by Brianna Fero for a conditional use permit for an Indoor Commercial 


Entertainment use (Gemini Games) at 193 W. Main Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Brianna Fero stated they are seeking a beer license for their business.  The business is a board 
game lounge with sales of games and Wisconsin based snacks/beverages.  The target age is 25-40 
year olds. 
 
Schumacher questioned the hours of operation.  Tyler Fero stated they anticipate later activity 
later in the day.  Ms. Fero stated they will only allow 21 year olds and up and may have special 
events for minors where the beer would be locked up. 


 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 
Barman stated the Commission is to focus on the use related to zoning and not the beer license.  
Mayor Swadley stated the Council will be reviewing the beer license tomorrow night. 


 
Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use permit to 
allow the indoor commercial entertainment use at 193 W. Main Street as presented, 2nd by 
Schumacher.   Motion carried 6 – 0. 


 
8. Request by Reyes Aranda for a conditional use permit for an Indoor Commercial 


Entertainment use (La Cantina LLC) at 620 Nygaard Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Selsor questioned if this is the same operator as the past or a new operator.  Scheel stated this is a 
new operator. 
 
Barman noted there has been a lot of turn-over for this site over the years and recommended the 
City work with the tenant to help the situation.  Scheel discussed the limitations of the site 



mstacey

Highlight







CONSENT AGENDA 
A. September 10, 2019 Council Minutes  
B. R-143-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants 
Motion by Boersma, second by Reeves to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 


 
 


NEW BUSINESS 
 
R- 144-2019-  Requesting Exemption from the County Library Tax 
 
Motion by Ligocki, second by Riley to approve R-144-2019 Requesting Exemption from the County 
Library Tax. Motion carried 11-0. 
 


 
R- 145-2019-  Authorizing and directing the proper city official (s) to adopt the 2020 Benefits Renewal: 
Medical  
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-145-2019 Authorizing and directing the proper 
city official (s) to adopt the 2020 Benefits Renewal: Medical. Gillingham said that there would be no 
increase for 2020 and a 6% increase for 2021. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R-146-2019-  authorizing and directing the proper city official (s) to adopt the 2020 Benefits Renewal: 
Dental  
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-146-2019 authorizing and directing the proper 
city official (s) to adopt the 2020 Benefits Renewal: Dental. Gillingham stated that there would be a flat 
renewal for full time employees and a 5% increase for those that work 30 hours or less a week. Motion 
carried 11-0. 


 


R-147-2019-  Approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for property at 1111 Veterans Road which is 
owned by STI Holdings Inc., Stoughton, WI.  
 
Motion by Caravello, second by Schumacher to approve R-147-2019 Approving a Certified Survey 
Map (CSM) for property at 1111 Veterans Road which is owned by STI Holdings Inc., Stoughton, WI. 
Stoughton Trailers is looking at having an ancillary business in the lot created by the CSM. Motion 
carried 11-0. 
 
 
R- 148-2019- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approving the Good View 
Condominium Preliminary Plat, 2209-2211 Wood View Drive, Stoughton, WI  
 



mstacey

Highlight







 Motion by Caravello, second by Riley to approve R-148-2019 Resolution by the Common Council of 
the City of Stoughton approving the Good View Condominium Preliminary Plat, 2209-2211 Wood 
View Drive, Stoughton, WI. Motion carried 10-0 with Riley abstaining.  
 
 
R- 149-2019- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Brianna Fero to allow an Indoor Commercial 
Entertainment use at 193 W. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  
 
Motion by Caravello, second by Riley to approve R-149-2019 Approving a Conditional Use Permit for 
Brianna Fero to allow an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at 193 W. Main Street, Stoughton, 
Wisconsin. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-150-2019-  Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Reyes Aranda for La Cantina LLC 
(restaurant) at 620 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  
 
Motion Caravello, second by Heili to approve R-150-2019 Approving a Conditional Use Permit request 
by Reyes Aranda for La Cantina LLC (restaurant) at 620 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. Motion 
carried 11-0. 
 
R-151-2019- Acceptance of Certain Public Improvements made by Harvest Farms, LLC for Nordic 
Ridge Phase III  
 
Motion by Boersma, second by Reeves to approve R-151-2019.  Acceptance of Certain Public 
Improvements made by Harvest Farms, LLC for Nordic Ridge Phase III. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding TIF Application for Kettle Park West Phase II   
Ron Henshue, Forward Development, stated that they have eliminated the multi-family portion of the 
plan. He emphasized that there were 5 different lot sizes and prices.  
 


A. Presentation by Finance Director Friedl regarding TIF Application for Kettle Park 
West Phase II 
 
Finance Director said that the request was a Pay-Go and there would be no upfront 
City borrowing. It poses no financial risk to the City. It would add approximately 
$69 million in assessed value to the City. There was question as to whether the 
connection to HWY 138 was required when the project when initially proposed. 
Dave Ferris said that Phase II will require to use some increment from Phase I to get 
it started. He stated that the City would not have to borrow money to finance the 
project.  
 


B. Common Council Discussion regarding a TIF Application for Kettle Park West 
Phase II ***The Council may convene in closed session, pursuant to Wis. Stat. 
19.85 (1) (e) for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. The 



mstacey

Highlight





		ADP3FAB.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, September 9, 2019 at 6:00 pm Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI.












S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Dvorak Annexation 2019.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE DIRECT ANNEXATION  


OF A PORTION OF THE TOWN OF DUNN TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, 
WISCONSIN 


 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval  - 0 
Fiscal Impact:       $0 


File Number: O -  - 2019 Date Introduced: 
 


 


 
RECITALS 


 
A. DVORAK INVESTMENTS II, LLC (“Owner”) owns land in the Town of Dunn as 


described in Exhibit A (the “Territory”) and is seeking to annex the Territory to the City of 
Stoughton, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0217(2). 


 
B. The City of Stoughton Plan Commission has recommended that the Territory be annexed to 


the City, and that the Territory be assigned a temporary zoning classification of RH- Rural 
Holding. 
 


C. The proposed annexation is in the process of being reviewed by the Wisconsin Department 
of Administration. 
 


D. The annexation represents approximately 51.315 acres from the Town of Dunn. 
 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 


ORDINANCE 
 
1. Recitals.  The above recitals are material to and are incorporated in this Ordinance. 


 
2. Territory Annexed.  The Territory is annexed to the City of Stoughton pursuant to 


Wis. Stat. § 66.0217(2). 


3. Effect of Annexation.  From and after the effective date of this ordinance, the 
Territory shall be a part of the City of Stoughton for any and all purposes provided by 
law, and all persons coming or residing within such Territory shall be subject to all 
ordinances, rules, and regulations governing the City of Stoughton. 







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Dvorak Annexation 2019.doc 


4. Temporary Zoning Designation.  The Territory shall be temporarily zoned R-H Rural 
Holding. 


5. Ward Designation.  The Territory shall be added to Ward No. 16 of the City of 
Stoughton. 


6. Clerk Duties.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish notice of and provide 
copies of this Ordinance in accordance with the applicable Wisconsin Statutes. 


7. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as 
provided by law. 
 
 


 
APPROVED: 
 
 
By:        
Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Holly Licht, City Clerk 


APPROVED:  ___________ 
PUBLISHED: ___________ 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Dvorak Annexation 2019.doc 


 


 
ANNEXATION  PETITION 


 
UNANIMOUS PETITION FOR DIRECT ANNEXATION 


UNDER § 66.0217(2), WIS. STATS. 


To the City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin: 


1. The undersigned hereby petition for direct annexation of the territory legally 
described on Exhibit A attached hereto to the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 
Wisconsin, whereby said territory would be detached from the Town of Dunn, 
Dane County, Wisconsin, pursuant to § 66.0217(2), Wis. Stats. 


2. Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a scale map which accurately reflects the 
legal description of the property to be annexed and the boundary of the 
annexing the City and includes a graphic scale on the face of the map. 


3. The current population of the territory proposed to be annexed is 0. 


4. This petition has been signed by the owners of all of the land within the 
territory proposed to be annexed, and by all of the electors residing 
within the territory proposed to be annexed. 


Owners of All Lands Within the Territory Proposed to 
be Annexed:  


Name of Owner: Dvorak Investments II, LLC 


Address of Owner: 1081 Eagle Court 
Edgerton, WI. 53534 


Date of Signing: May 7, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 By: 
Robert H. Dvorak, 
Authorized Member 


Signature: 







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Dvorak Annexation 2019.doc 


EXHIBIT  A 
RHD Properties LLC  
Annexation Legal Description 
 
Parcel 1: 
A part of the Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ and a part of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ all 
within Section 36, Township 6 North, Range 10 East in the Town of Dunn, Dane County, 
Wisconsin. More particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the East ¼ corner of said Section 36; thence South 01°22’47” West along the East 
line of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 36, a distance of 66.01 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence 
continuing South 01°22’47” West along the East line of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 36, a 
distance of 1246.53 feet to the Southeast corner of the said Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼; thence 
North 89°42’12” West along the South line of the said Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼, a distance of 
1311.99 feet to the Southwest corner of the said Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼; thence North 
01°11’51” East along the West line of the said Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼, a distance of 
1319.32 feet to the Northwest corner of the said Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼; thence North 
01°17’52” East along the West line of the said Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼, a distance of 
1091.70 feet to a point on the Southwesterly right-of-way of USH 51; thence along the 
Southwesterly right-of-way of USH 51 the following courses: 


1) Thence South 51°30’25” East, a distance of 181.94 feet; 
2) Thence South 36°34’32” East, a distance of 155.24 feet; 
3) Thence South 51°30’25” East, a distance of 200.00 feet; 
4) Thence South 68°12’22” East, a distance of 104.40 feet; 
5) Thence South 51°30’25” East, a distance of 316.16 feet to a point at the intersection of the 


westerly property line of lands owned by Wisconsin Department of Transportation; 
Thence leaving the said right-of-way of USH 51 South 10°09’19” East along the westerly property 
line of lands owned by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation, a distance of 381.88 feet; 
thence South 29°57’19” East along the westerly property line of lands owned by the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation, a distance of 146.40 feet to a point on the North line of Lot 1 of 
Certified Survey Map No. 8634 recorded in Volume 47, Pages 224-225 as Document No. 2869955; 
thence along the boundary of said Lot 1 the following courses: 


1) Thence North 89°23’36” West, a distance of 1.02 feet; 
2) Thence North 30°03’52” West, a distance of 26.76 feet; 
3) Thence North 89°24’19” West, a distance of 286.90 feet; 
4) Thence South 01°57’05” West, a distance of 428.79 feet;  
5) Thence North 87°23’21” East, a distance of 157.87 feet; 
6) Thence North 02°11’39” East, a distance of 330.86 feet; 
7) Thence South 89°24’19” East, a distance of 402.03 feet to a point on the said Southwesterly 


right-of-way of USH 51; 
Thence leaving the said boundary of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 8634 and continuing South 
89°24’19” East, a distance of 156.96 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Said Parcel contains 2,235,268 square feet or 51.315 acres more or less. 
 







EXHIBIT  B















August 20, 2019 PETITION FILE NO. 14248


HOLLY LICHT, CLERK
CITY OF STOUGHTON
207 S FORREST ST
STOUGHTON, WI 53589-1724


CATHY HASSLINGER, CLERK
TOWN OF DUNN
4156 COUNTY RD B
MC FARLAND, WI 53558-9754


Subject: DVORAK INVESTMENTS ANNEXATION


Section 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats., provides that the annexation of lands to cities and villages within a county 
having a population of 50,000 or more shall be reviewed by the Department of Administration in order to 
determine if the proposed annexation is in the public interest or against the public interest. The proposed 
annexation from the TOWN OF DUNN to the CITY OF STOUGHTON (see attached description) must be 
reviewed pursuant to the statute.


To assist us in making this determination, we urge that you promptly supply the data requested on the 
enclosed questionnaire (where possible) and return the questionnaire to the department.


The purpose of this questionnaire is to assist the department in determining "Whether the governmental 
services, including zoning, to be supplied to the territory could clearly be better supplied by the town...." 
The statute further stipulates that the department shall study the "shape of the proposed annexation and the 
homogeneity of the territory with the annexing municipality." In addition, we would appreciate receiving 
from you any comments or information bearing on governmental services or shape and homogeneity that 
would indicate whether the annexation is in or against the public interest.


Please return the questionnaire as soon as possible so that the information can be reviewed prior to the 
department's statutory deadline of September 10, 2019. Direct any questions and comments to Erich 
Schmidtke at (608) 264-6102. Thank you for your cooperation.


For additional information on annexation or other land use issues, visit our web site at 
http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview/.


Sincerely,


Erich Schmidtke


Enclosures


TONY EVERS


JOEL BRENNAN


GOVERNOR


SECRETARY


Municipal Boundary Review
PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701
Voice (608) 264-6102     Fax (608) 264-6104
Email: wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov
Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview







CITY OF STOUGHTON   RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF     DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


  


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


 


 
August 22, 2019 
 
Municipal Boundary Review – DOA 
Attention: Erich Schmidtke 
101 E. Wilson Street 
P.O. Box 1645, Madison, WI 53701 
 


Re: Dvorak Investments II, LLC Annexation: Petition File No. 14248  
 
Dear Mr. Schmidtke: 
 
I have attached the completed Annexation Review Questionnaire for the above annexation 
petition.  This letter is intended to supplement the responses within the questionnaire. 
 


 The petition area is located within the City’s Comprehensive Plan to accommodate urban 
development as part the City of Stoughton.  Our Future Land Use Map (copy included) 
depicts this area as part of the Northwest Planned Mixed Use Area.  


 The petition area is contiguous to a large tract of land south of CTH B on the east side of 
USH 51 that is already in the City limits.    


 While this property is currently not in the Urban Service Area, it is anticipated an Urban 
Service Area amendment will be pursued to include the petition area as the plan for 
development evolves.  Having this property within the City will bolster the application for 
an Urban Service Area Amendment.   


 As reflected in the questionnaire, this property is currently undeveloped and the Town 
taxes for five years (total $257) will be paid to the Town. 


 Stoughton’s development history has provided for compact urban development.  Working 
under the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Ordinances, the City will work with the 
landowner to develop a plan for the petition area.  Developing a detailed plan for the area 
before annexation leaves uncertainty of whether an annexation would be approved in the 
future. 


 Upon annexation, we anticipate the petition area will continue to be used for agricultural 
purposes until development occurs. 


 The City has a full-time Director of Planning & Development and a full-time Assistant 
Planner/Zoning Administrator.  The City utilizes local zoning and subdivision regulations 
for properties within the City as a tool to implement the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  


 We anticipate a new ward will be created for the petition area. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


Please let me know if you have any follow up questions. 


 


Sincerely, 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


Rodney Scheel 
 
Rodney Scheel 
Director of Planning & Development 


 







      


 


 


 


TONY EVERS 
 


  


  


GOVERNOR 
 


  


  


JOEL BRENNAN 
 


  


  


SECRETARY 
 


  


  


Municipal Boundary Review 
PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701 
Voice (608) 264-6102     Fax (608) 264-6104 
Email: wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov 
Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview 


 


 


     


      


      


 September 10, 2019  PETITION FILE NO. 14248 


         


 HOLLY LICHT, CLERK 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


207 S FORREST ST 


STOUGHTON, WI 53589-1724 


 CATHY HASSLINGER, CLERK 


TOWN OF DUNN 


4156 COUNTY RD B 


MC FARLAND, WI 53558-9754 


         


 Subject: DVORAK INVESTMENTS ANNEXATION 


 


The proposed annexation submitted to our office on August 20, 2019, has been reviewed and found to be in 


the public interest.   


 


This petition is an amendment to an earlier proposal – MBR #14218 – which was found to be Against the 


Public Interest because it would have created a town island contrary to Wisconsin statutes.  Additionally, 


the Department was unclear whether services could be provided to the area. 


 


In determining whether an annexation is in the public interest, s. 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats. requires the 


Department to examine "[t]he shape of the proposed annexation and the homogeneity of the territory with 


the annexing village or city…." so as, to ensure the resulting boundaries are rational and compact. The 


statute also requires the Department to consider whether the annexing city or village can provide municipal 


services to the territory, or whether a neighboring community could better provide needed and requested 


services 


 


The amended petition is for territory that is reasonably shaped and contiguous to the City of Stoughton.  


The amended petition corrects the prior town island problem by excluding territory to the east and north to 


connect the former island parcel to the rest of the Town.   


 


Regarding services, the City has provided information from its comprehensive plan which anticipates that 


this annexation territory will ultimately become part of the City’s Northwest Planned Mixed Use Area.  


Some requested City services will be available immediately.  Others, such as sewer and water service, will 


require more time.  For example, an Urban Service Amendment is needed to extend sewer and water 


infrastructure, which the City estimates could take 5 years or more.  Clearly no other neighboring 


community could better provide the requested services to the territory. 


 


The Town again points out that the land use changes motivating this annexation, and the City’s designating 


this area as its Northwest Planned Mixed Use Area, run directly counter to the Town’s comprehensive plan 


which designates this territory as Agricultural Preservation Area.  The two Communities’ comprehensive 


plans lay bare their divergent future land use visions for this area.  However, both Communities 


comprehensive plans are consistent in that both plans recommend creating an intergovernmental boundary 


 







agreement, preserving farmland, promoting compact and orderly development, and implementing joint 


planning to “keep issues calm and outcomes predictable and mutually beneficial”1.  Developing a boundary 


agreement could successfully resolve the Communities’ shared land use and service issues.  The Town 


already has an existing boundary agreement with the Village of McFarland, which could serve as impetus 


and precedent. 


 


The Department reminds clerks of annexing municipalities of the requirements of s. 66.0217 (9)(a), Wis. 


Stats., which states: 


 


"The clerk of a city or village which has annexed shall file immediately with the secretary of 


administration a certified copy of the ordinance, certificate and plat, and shall send one copy to each 


company that provides any utility service in the area that is annexed. The clerk shall record the ordinance 


with the register of deeds and file a signed copy of the ordinance with the clerk of any affected school 


district..." 


 


State and federal aids based on population and equalized value may be significantly affected through 


failure to file with the Department of Administration. Please file a copy of your annexing ordinance, 


including a statement certifying the population of the annexed territory. Please include your MBR 


number 14248 with your ordinance. Ordinance filing checklist available at http://mds.wi.gov/, click on 


"Help on How to Submit Municipal Records". Email scanned copy of required materials (color scan maps 


with color) to mds@wi.gov or mail to: Wisconsin Department of Administration, Municipal Boundary 


Review, PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701-1645. 


 


The petition file is available for viewing at: http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2322 


Please call me at (608) 264-6102, should you have any questions concerning this annexation review. 


         


 Sincerely, 


 


 


 Erich Schmidtke, Municipal Boundary Review  cc: petitioner 
 


 


                                                           
1 City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan (2017), page 154 



http://mds.wi.gov/

mailto:mds@wi.gov

http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2322





Annexation Review 
Questionnaire 


Wisconsin Department of Administration 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


WI Dept. of Administration 


Municipal Boundary Review 


101 E. Wilson Street, 9th Floor 


Madison WI 53703 


608-264-6102    Fax: 608-264-6104 


wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov 


http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview/ 


 


Petitioner: 


Dvorak Investments II, LLC 


Petition Number: 


14248 


1.  Territory to be annexed: From Town of: Dunn To City/Village of: City of Stoughton 


2.  Area (Acres): 51.315  


3. Pick one: Property Tax Payments     OR   Boundary Agreement 


a. Annual town property tax on territory to be annexed: $51 


b. Total that will be paid to Town 


(annual tax multiplied by 5 years): 257 


c. Paid by:     Petitioner     City      Village 


                      Other:       


a. Title of boundary agreement       


b. Year adopted      


c. Participating jurisdictions       


d. Statutory authority (pick one)   


    s. 66.0307          s. 66.0225          s. 66.0301 


4. Resident Population:     Electors: 0     Total: 0 


5.  Approximate present land use of territory: 


 Residential:     % Recreational:     % Commercial:     % Industrial:     % 


 Undeveloped: 100% 


6.  If territory is undeveloped, what is the anticipated use? 


 


 Residential: 35% Recreational: 15% Commercial: 40% Industrial: 5% 


 Other: 5% 


 


     Comments: The City's Comprehensive Plan includes the annexation area in our Future Land Use Map as part of 


our Northwest Planned Mixed Use Area. 


7.  Has a preliminary  or  final plat been submitted to the Plan Commission: Yes    No 


     Plat Name:       


8.  What is the nature of land use adjacent to this territory in the city or village? Agriculture 


 


     In the town?: Agriculture 


9.  What are the basic service needs that precipitated the request for annexation? 


 


 Sanitary sewer  Water supply  Storm sewers 


 Police/Fire protection  EMS   Zoning 


 Other:       



mailto:wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov

http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview/

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/66.0307

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/66.0225

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/66.0301





 


10.  Is the city/village or town capable of providing needed utility services? 


 City/Village Yes   No.   Town Yes   No 


 


 If yes, approximate time table for providing service: City/Village Town 


 Sanitary Sewers immediately   


 or, write in number of years. 5+       


 


 Water Supply immediately,   


 or, write in number of years. 5+       


 


Will provision of sanitary sewers and/or water supply to the territory proposed for annexation require capital 
expenditures (i.e. treatment plant expansion, new lift stations, interceptor sewers, wells, water storage facilities)?      


Yes   No. 


If yes, identify the nature of the anticipated improvements and their probable costs: Sanitary Sewer & water 


infrastructure will need to be extended to this area.  Once development plans area submitted and as part of 


the Urban Service Amendment process, the City will evaluate the scope of these improvements along with the 


timing and funding mechanisms available. 


11.  Planning: 


 1. Do you have a comprehensive plan for the City/Village/Town? Yes     No 


     Is this annexation consistent with your comprehensive plan?  Yes     No 


     Describe: The petition area is located within the City’s Comprehensive Plan to accommodate urban development as 


part the City of Stoughton.  Our Future Land Use Map depicts this area as part of the Northwest Planned Mixed Use 


Area 


 


 2. Annual appropriation for planning?  $       


 


 3. How is the annexation territory now zoned? County Zoning - A-1(Ex) 


 


 4. How will the land be zoned and used if annexed? Under City Zoning, Planned Mixed Use which can include: Planned 


Business, Institutional, Planned Office, Planned Industrial and Multifamily. 


12.  Other relevant information and comments bearing upon the public interest in the annexation: 


      


 Prepared by: Town   City   Village Please RETURN PROMPTLY to: 


wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov 


 


Municipal Boundary Review 


PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701 


 


Fax: (608) 264-6104 


 Name: Rodney Scheel 


 Email: rjscheel@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 Phone: 608-873-6619 


 Date: 8-22-2019 


(April 2013) 



mailto:wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov





!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!!


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! !


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!!!!!
!


!


!!


!


!
!


! !


!
!


!
!


!!!!


!


!


!
!


!!!!


!


!


!!!


!!!!


!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! !


!
!


!


!!!!!!


!


!!


!
!


!


!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!!!!!!!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!!!!


!
!


!!!!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! ! ! !


! ! !


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


! !


!


!
! !


!
!


!
!


! ! !
!


!
!


!


! !


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!


!


!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!


!!


!


!


!!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!!


!


!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


! !


!


!
!


!


!!


!
!


! ! !


!
!


!


!


!


!


!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!!!!


!


!


!!!!!


!!!
!!!


!
!


!
!


!!!!


!


!!


!


!!


!
!


!!


!
!


!


!
!


!!!!!


!


!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! !


!
!


!


!!


!!


!!!!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


! !


!
!


!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!
!!


!
!


! !


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! !
!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!!!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! !


!
!


!


! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


N Page St


Skyline Dr


Lincoln Ave


Jackson St


Johnson St


E Main St


N Van Buren St


Greig Tr


King St


Kings Lynn Rd


East St


Aaker Rd


Veterans
Rd


S Fourth St


Lin
ne


rud
 Dr


Dunkirk Ave


W Milwaukee St


Moline St


Nygaard St


W Wilson St


Kriedeman Dr


West St


Sundt Ln


Hamilton St


Country Club Rd


Hilldale Ln


Buckingham Rd


Hyland Dr


S Academy St


S Van Buren St


Chapin Ln


Furseth Rd


Felland St


Berry St


Nottingham


Rd


Eisenhower Rd


Pleasant View Dr


North St


Indu s tri al Cir


Lowell St


Virgin Lake Dr


Ridge St


SLyn n St


Riverside Dr


W Jefferson St


Commerce Rd


N Div
isio


n St


Larvik Ln


Mel lu m Dr


W Taft St Amundson Pkwy


Aspen Rd


E Academy St


Smedal Dr


Holtan Rd


Mandt Pkwy


Roosevelt St


Ho
el 


Av
e


Carl Ave


W Prospect St


Westchester Cir


E Jefferson St


Velkommen Way


Nora St


Barberry Rd
Business Par k


Ci
r


S Water St


E Milwaukee St


Riverview Dr


Paradise Dr


Silverado Dr


Grant St


Meadow Dr


N Morris St


Quinn Ln


E South St


Chalet Dr


Hill St


Park St


Garden Ave


Church St


Kvam m
eL


n


Giles St


Sa
wy


er
Rd


Eighth St


N Monroe St


Ha
nso


n Rd


E Washington St


Ha
rve


st L
n


Deer Point Dr


N Prairie St


Ap


ollo Cir


Matthew Way


W Broadway St


Garfield St
Coopers Cswy


Patterson St


Dv
ora


k Ct Ashberry Ln


Brickson St


S Page St


Kensington Sq


Clancey Ln


Vernon St


E South St


W Main St


N Madison St


Hyland Dr


Isham St


W South St


¬«138


")N


£¤51 ¬«138 £¤51


¬«138


")N


")A


")A


Roby Rd


Lincoln Ave


")B
")B


Williams Dr


N 
Pa


ge
 St


W Main St


W Main St


Jo
hn


so
n S


t


Su
nd


t L
n


Kin
gs


Lyn
n R


d


Lunde Cir


Rutland-Dunn Townline Rd


£¤51


£¤51


D e
vo


ns
hir


eR
d


Hoel Ave


Valberg Dr


Nordland Dr


Markens Gate Rd


Korgen Dr


Harding St


Sto
ne


y Ri d ge T
r


S F
ou


rth
St


N Van Buren St


Yahara River


City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan


Map
6a


Future Land Use


±Shaping places, shaping change


VANDEWALLE &ASSOCIATES INC.


Eastside
Planned


Neighborhood


Southwest
Planned


Neighborhood


Northwest
Planned


Mixed Use Area


South
Planned


Neighborhood


Northside
Planned 


Neighborhood


0 0.25 0.50.125
Miles


** See Table 9 for Acreage Totals.


Future Land Use
Agriculture/Rural/Vacant
Unsewered Residential
Single Family Residential
Two Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential


Planned Office
Neighborhood Office
Planned Business
Neighborhood Business
Planned Industrial


Right-of-Way
Surface Water


Institutional


General Industrial
Heavy Industrial
Landfill/Extraction


Environmental Corridor (subject to confirmation)*
Recreation or Public Open Space


Planned Neighborhood
Central Business


Westside
Planned


Mixed Use Corridor


Railroads


Planned Stoughton Urban Development Area**


! !


Northwest
Planned


Neighborhood


1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial


1 2
3


4
5
6


1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space


1
2
345


6
7


*Environmental corridors are a composite of the most important natural resources.
Individual components consist of most of those elements seen on Map 2: Natural
Resources. These include: DNR Wetlands, 100 Year Floodplain, Woodlands,
Public Lands, Steep Slopes above 12%, and all other Environmental Corridors as
defined by CARPC. Within the Stoughton Urban Service Area, only Corridors 
defined by CARPC are depicted.


Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use.
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated 
zoning districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. 
Existing (not future) land use pattern shown beyond Planned Development Area.


2017 Municipal Boundaries
2017 Limited Service Areas
2017 Urban Service Areas


Planned Mixed Use


Adopted: July 11, 2017


Sources: Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton, CARPC, FEMA, WI DNR,
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board
























T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2019\10-14-19\Plan Info\101 W. Main Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  October 1, 2019 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the October 14, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
Request by Dr. Daniel Tataje of Stoughton Family Dental for approval of a projecting sign at 
101 W. Main Street. 
This request is a proposed signage change to a building within the Downtown Design Overlay 
Zoning District.   The front wall signs are proposed to be removed and a projecting sign is planned 
for installation on the Main Street side of the building.   The resolution, application information, and 
staff review letter are provided. 
 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 


Approving a projecting sign at 101 W. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 13 - 2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 10, 2019 


RECITALS 
 


A. Dr. Daniel Tataje (the “Applicant”) is seeking approval for a projecting sign at 101 W. Main 
Street in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Central Business and is within the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning 
District (DDOZD).   


 
C. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed improvements at their regular 


October 14, 2019 meeting and found that the improvements meet the intent of the DDOZD 
requirements, sign ordinance and Comprehensive Plan. 


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the projecting sign at 101 W. Main 
Street, Stoughton, WI, with the following conditions: 
 


• A zoning permit is required prior to sign installation. 
 
   
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Planning Commission Chair 
 


 
   
  
   
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2019\101 W. Main Street Signage - PC Resolution 13-19.doc 











3. A clear depiction of the proposed appearance of the property including color renderings,
paint charts, scaled or fully dimensioned drawings of proposed components such as
windows, doors, railings, fencing or other site components and detailed building elevations of
the proposed improvement.


4. A clear written description of the proposed modification including a complete listing of
proposed components, materials and colors.


5. A clear written explanation regarding how the proposed alteration will conform to section
78-517(7) (attached) with direct reference to each applicable design standard.


Structural Projects: Structural projects are subject to Plan Commission approval as set forth in
zoning code section 78-517. Structural projects include work involving modification to the physical
configuration of an existing structure (such as remodeling) or the construction of a new structure
(such as erection of a new structure, the addition or removal of bulk to an existing structure, and
includes the removal or destruction of any building façade). Structural projects shall require a public
hearing prior to action by the Plan Commission. Applications for structural projects shall be
accompanied by all of the following:


1. A building/zoning permit application.


2. A clear depiction of the existing appearance of the property including color photographs
including scaled or fully dimensioned drawings of existing components such as windows,
doors, railings, fencing or other site components and detailed building elevations proposed
for alteration or replacement.


3. A clear depiction of the proposed appearance of the property including color renderings,
paint charts, scaled or fully dimensioned drawings of proposed components such as
windows, doors, railings, fencing or other site components and detailed building elevations of
the proposed improvement.


4. For all projects involving a new building, or an addition to an existing building, a detailed site
plan which provides the following information:


a. A title block indicating name and address of the current property owner, developer
and project consultants;


b. The date(s) of original and revisions to the plan;


c. A north arrow and graphic scale. Said scale shall be no less than one inch equals 100
feet;


d. All property lines and existing and proposed right-of-way lines with bearings and
dimensions clearly labeled (a survey is likely necessary);


e. All existing and proposed easements lines and dimensions including explanation of
ownership and purpose;


f. All existing and proposed buildings and paved areas including walks, drives, decks,
patios, fences, utility poles, drainage facilities and walls;







g. All required building setback lines;


h. A legal description of the subject property;


i. The location type and size of all signage onsite;


j. The location, type and orientation of all exterior lighting of the subject property (a
photometric plan may be necessary);


k. The location of all access points, parking, loading areas on the subject property
including a summary of the number of parking stalls provided with all dimensions of
such areas;


l. The location of all outdoor storage areas;


m. The location and type of any permanently protected green space areas (not
common).


5. A detailed landscaping plan that meets the requirements of Table 78-604 and takes into
account both the walking and driving experience.


6. A clear written description of the proposed modification including a complete listing of
proposed components, materials and colors.


7. A clear written explanation regarding how the proposed alteration will conform to section
78-517(7) (attached) with direct reference to each applicable design standard.


Demolition: The razing of a building or structure shall follow the following requirements:


1. Demolition is subject to approval by the Common Council. The Common Council shall
hold a public hearing before acting on the application;


2. Demolition shall not be approved unless the applicant demonstrates any of the following:


a. A permit for the construction of a new building or structure on the site has been
approved and the owner has entered into a Development Agreement with the City;


b. The building or structure, through no fault of the current or prior owner, is
detrimental to, or does not contribute to, the architectural or aesthetic character of
the district. Where a building or structure has been allowed to deteriorate in a
manner that failed to comply with the City property maintenance ordinances, such
deterioration is the fault of the owner;


c. A denial of the permit will result in a taking of the owner’s property without just
compensation in violation of the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin or the
Constitution of the United States of America.


S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications\Downtown Design Overlay APP.doc







Reproduction in whole or part with out written permission by


Copyright Wisconsin
Sign & Graphics, LLC 2019


Landlord Approval
Signature:
Print:
Date:


Client Approval
Signature:
Print:
Date:


Date:


Acct. Rep.


Designer:
Drawing No.
Revision
Scale:


Customer
Street
City


Signs For Your Success!109 Hotel St.    Brooklyn, WI 53521    608.455.5055     www.WisSign.com


     


7-20-19


Greg


Greg


Job Detail:


Manufacture (1) dimensional, 
elliptical overhanging sign for 
street / sidewalk display aached
to building front. Graphics to be
applied on both sides of piece.


Materials: acrylic leers on a 
36” wide elliptical substrate. 
Fastened to a metal scrolled base
aached to building face with bolt
or lag screws.


Elliptical shape:
Length: 36 inches by 
Height: 21 inches:


Logo & Stoughton Family Dental


Stoughton Family Dental  101 W Main Street  Stoughton, Wi Outside Overhanging Street Sign


Pantone Color  534 C Pantone Color  540 C


Pantone Color  302 C Pantone Color  303 C


Pantone Color  303 C


36”


21 1/2”


2”


1”


1” thick PVC BLANK


City of Stoughton Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District Review Documents


facing west view from corner


14.50 feet


12 feet


Property Address: 101 W Main St  
Property Owner:  CHHS INVESTMENTS LLC
Telephone: 608-205-1870   
Email: cornerstonestoughton@gmail.com


Sign Contractor: Wis Sign & Graphics, Brooklyn, Wisconsin
Telephone: 608-455-5055   
Email: gmarshall@wissign.com


41”







City of Stoughton Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District Review Documents


Stoughton Family Dental  101 W Main Street  Stoughton, Wi


Reproduction in whole or part with out written permission by


Copyright Wisconsin
Sign & Graphics, LLC 2019


Landlord Approval
Signature:
Print:
Date:


Client Approval
Signature:
Print:
Date:


Date:


Acct. Rep.


Designer:
Drawing No.
Revision
Scale:


Customer
Street
City


Signs For Your Success!109 Hotel St.    Brooklyn, WI 53521    608.455.5055     www.WisSign.com


     


7-20-19


Greg


Greg


Sign Description:


Sign is elliptical in shape and is 36 inches wide by 21.5 inches high at the co vertex points.  Sign materials and construction are as follows:


1 sign ellipse is of PVC industrial grade moisture resistant material, letters are of acrylic plastic.
2 Bracket is metal, scrolled metal elements
3. Sign shall be installed at location presented in document drawing provided.  Proposed
    height approx 10 1/2 feet to 12 feet from grade.
4. Sign shall be situated that the clearance will be greater than 9 ft from grade and 
    sign shall be no more than approx. 4.5 to 5 sq ft. in total.
5. Sign message-content shall be of the business name only.
6. Sign shall not be attached to second story, nor block or be attached
    to any significant second story features.  Sign is in line with existing 
    hanging signs displayed with other business on street.


Job Detail:


Manufacture (1) dimensional, 
elliptical overhanging sign for 
street / sidewalk display aached
to building front. Graphics to be
applied on both sides of piece.


Materials: acrylic leers on a 
36” wide elliptical substrate. 
Fastened to a metal scrolled base
aached to building face with bolt
or lag screws.


Elliptical shape:
Length: 36 inches by 
Height: 21 inches:


Logo & Stoughton Family Dental Pantone Color  534 C Pantone Color  540 C


Pantone Color  303 C


Pantone Color  303 C


36”


21 1/2”


2”


1”


1” thick PVC BLANK


Property Address: 101 W Main St  
Property Owner:  John Landlord
Telephone:
Email: 


Sign Contractor: Wis Sign & Graphics
1-608-455-5055







Reproduction in whole or part with out written permission by


Copyright Wisconsin
Sign & Graphics, LLC 2019


Landlord Approval
Signature:
Print:
Date:


Client Approval
Signature:
Print:
Date:


Date:


Acct. Rep.


Designer:
Drawing No.
Revision
Scale:


Customer
Street
City


Signs For Your Success!109 Hotel St.    Brooklyn, WI 53521    608.455.5055     www.WisSign.com


     


7-20-19


Greg


Greg


Existing sign example at another practice location
showing similar style and color styling and look.City of Stoughton Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District Review Documents


Property Address: 101 W Main St  
Property Owner:  CHHS INVESTMENTS LLC
Telephone: 608-205-1870   
Email: cornerstonestoughton@gmail.com


Sign Contractor: Wis Sign & Graphics, Brooklyn, Wisconsin
Telephone: 608-455-5055   
Email: gmarshall@wissign.com


10.50 feet


Proposed sign placement


Stoughton Family Dental  101 W Main Street  Stoughton, Wi


Facing west view on corner of Main Street and Division Street, downtown


North Facing building front on Main Street, downtown


12 feet







Image capture: Aug 2018 © 2019 Google


Street View - Aug 2018


Stoughton, Wisconsin


Google


100 W Main St


Page 1 of 2100 W Main St - Google Maps


9/27/2019https://www.google.com/maps/place/101+W+Main+St,+Stoughton,+WI+53589/@42.9167437,-89.22043,3a,90y,229.24h,93.11...







Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan,
METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community, Parcels


101 W. Main Street


Parcels
October 1, 2019 0 100 20050 Feet


¯



mstacey

Sticky Note

101







CITY OF STOUGHTON 


DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 


BUILDING/ZONING PERMIT APPLICATION 
 


Date of Application ________________________________________________________________________ 
 


Applicant Name __________________________________________ Phone___________________________ 
 


Applicant Email___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 


Owners Name (other than applicant) ___________________________________ Phone_________________ 
 


Subject Property Address __________________________________________________________________ 


   


Permit for ________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Proposed use(s) ___________________________________________________________________________  


 


Project area for new structures and additions (sq. ft.) ___________________________________________ 


 


*Estimated building construction cost including labor____________________________________________  


Estimated electric construction cost including labor______________________________________________  


Estimated plumbing construction cost including labor____________________________________________  


Estimated hvac construction cost including labor________________________________________________ 


Estimated zoning project cost (signage, fencing, etc...) ___________________________________________  
*Do not include costs related to flooring, carpeting or painting. 


 


Contractor Information:  
 


Construction_________________________ Phone#______________________Lic#_____________________ 


 


Electrical____________________________ Phone#______________________Lic#_____________________ 


 


Plumbing____________________________ Phone#______________________Lic#_____________________ 


 


HVAC_______________________________Phone#______________________Lic#_____________________ 


 


Cautionary Statement to Owners Obtaining Building Permits 


Section 101.65 (1r) of the Wisconsin Statutes requires municipalities that enforce the Uniform Dwelling Code 


to provide an owner who applies for a building permit with a statement advising the owner that: 


 


If the owner hires a contractor to perform work under the building permit and the contractor is not bonded or 


insured as required under Section 101.654(2)(a), the following consequences might occur: 


The owner may be held liable for any bodily injury to or death of others or for any damage to the property of 


others that arises out of the work performed under this building permit or that is caused by any negligence by 


the contractor that occurs in connection with the work performed under this building permit. 


The owner may not be able to collect from the contractor, damages for any loss sustained by the owner because 


of a violation by the contractor of the one and two-family dwelling code or an ordinance enacted under sub. 


(1)(a), because of any bodily injury to or death of others or damage to property of others that arises out of the 


work performed under this building permit or because of any bodily injury to or death of others or damage to 


property of others that is caused by any negligence by the contractor that occurs in connection with the work 


performed under this building permit. 







 


Cautionary Statement to Contractors for Projects Involving Buildings Built Before 1978 


If this project is in a dwelling or child-occupied facility, built before 1978, and disturbs 6 sq. ft. or more of paint 


per room, 20 sq. ft. or more of exterior paint, or involves windows, then the requirements of Chapter DHS 163 


requiring Lead-Safe Renovation Training and Certification apply.  Call (608)266-6876 or go to 


http://dhs.wisconsin.gov/lead/WisconsinRRPRule.htm 


 


Wetlands Notice to Permit Applicants 


"You are responsible for complying with state and federal laws concerning construction near or on wetlands, 


lakes, and streams.  Wetlands that are not associated with open water can be difficult to identify.  Failure to 


comply may result in removal or modification of construction that violates the law or other penalties or costs.  


For more information, visit the Department of Natural Resources wetlands identification web page:  


(http://dnr.wi.gov/wetlands/delineation.html) or contact a department of Natural Resources service center." 


 


Additional Responsibilities for Owners with Projects Disturbing One or More Acres of Soil 


I understand that this project is subject to Chapter NR 151 regarding additional erosion control and stormwater 


management and will comply with those standards. 


 


Additional Responsibilities for Property Owners 


The owner is responsible to provide the location of lot stakes onsite for many projects to confirm setbacks 


including but not limited to: prior to pouring footings; new construction; building addition; fencing; accessory 


structures.  Additionally, the owner is responsible to call the building inspector for required inspections such as: 


Footings (prior to pouring); electrical; plumbing; HVAC; insulation; framing.  Call the Building Inspector at 


608-873-7626 if you are unsure what inspections are required. 


 
IF APPLICABLE, A PLAN MUST BE SUBMITTED SHOWING LOT LINES AND ALL DIMENSIONS OF 


THE PROJECT.  NO WORK SHALL BEGIN WITHOUT A BUILDING PERMIT.  FEES ARE DOUBLED FOR 


ANY WORK THAT HAS BEGUN WITHOUT A PERMIT.   


 


BY SIGNING THIS APPLICATION, YOU ARE AGREEING TO ALLOW BUILDING INPSECTION AND 


ZONING STAFF TO ENTER THE PROPERTY TO PERFORM ALL INSPECTIONS.  IT IS UNDERSTOOD, 


PERMISSION WILL NEED TO BE GRANTED TO ENTER ANY STRUCTURE TO PERFORM 


INSPECTIONS WHICH INCLUDES A REQUEST BY THE APPLICANT OR OWNER FOR AN INSPECTION.   


 


ANY QUESTIONS, CALL THE BUILDING INSPECTOR AT 608-873-7626 OR ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 


AT 608-646-0421.  THERE IS ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AT 


WWW.CITYOFSTOUGHTON.COM/PLANNING 


 


 


Owner/Contractor Signature___________________________________________ Date___________________ 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON      RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT   DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning     fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 
 
 
September 26, 2019 
 
 
Dr. Daniel Tataje 
6660 University Ave. 
Middleton, WI. 53562 
 
 
Dear Mr. Tataje: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed front wall projecting sign at 101 W. Main Street.  This 
review is based on the downtown design overlay zoning district requirements as outlined below.  
This request is planned for review/approval at the October 14, 2019 Planning Commission meeting 
of which you will receive notice.  You and/or your representative are required to attend the meeting 
to present your proposed signage and answer questions. 
 
1. The property at 101 W. Main Street is zoned CB – Central Business and is within the 


Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District (DDOZD).  The building is not listed as a Local 
Landmark and is not subject to Landmarks Commission review.  The building has been 
determined to be in compliance with the standards of section 78-517 and shall follow the 
design standards of section 78-517(7).  The application involves front projecting signage 
only.   
 


2. Section 78-517 (1) – (5) in relation to this request states in part: 
(1) Purpose. This district is intended to preserve and enhance the aesthetic qualities of the 


downtown, and retain a consistent and visually pleasing image for the downtown area.  
(2) Boundaries. This district has the same boundaries as the Main Street Commercial 


Historic District as listed on the National Register of Historic Places, as depicted on the 
overlay districts zoning map.  


(3)(b) Renovation means work involving a change in the appearance of a building or structure 
(such as architectural component or signage substitution or painting, roofing, siding, 
with different colors, finishes, or materials). 


(5)(b) Renovation. Renovation shall be subject to approval by the plan commission. The plan 
commission shall approve an application for renovation if the proposed renovation will 
conform to the standards set forth in section 78-517(7). Applications for approval of 
renovation shall be made to the zoning administrator, and shall be accompanied by all 
of the following:  


1.  The building permit application if such an application is required. Provided.  
Once approved, a permit fee of $75 will be necessary. 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTVOVZODI_S78-517DODEOVDI





2. A clear depiction of the existing appearance of the property including clear color 
photographs. Scaled or fully dimensioned drawings of existing components such as 
windows, doors, railings, fencing or other site components, and/or detailed 
building elevations which are proposed for alteration or replacement are 
recommended and may be required by the city. A picture of the building is 
provided. 


3.  A clear depiction of the proposed appearance of the property including paint 
charts, promotional brochures, and/or clear color photographs of replacement 
architectural components. Scaled or fully dimensioned drawings of proposed 
components such as windows, doors, railings, fencing or other site components, 
and/or detailed building elevations which are proposed for alteration or 
replacement are recommended and may be required by the city.  A drawing and 
picture is provided. 


4.  A clear written description of the proposed modification, including a complete 
listing of proposed components, materials, and colors. A description is provided. 


5.  A clear written explanation regarding how the proposed alteration will conform to 
section 78-517(7) with direct reference to each applicable design standard. See 
below. 
 


3. Section 78-517(7) states the following related to this request: 
 
Design standards.  Renovation and structural projects shall conform to the design standards in 
this section that the plan commission determines are applicable to the application. 
 
(7)(l) Exterior colors. Colors shall relate in a positive way to the existing materials found on 


the facade (especially the masonry), and to existing elements, such as signs or awnings. 
Clean the exterior surfaces with the gentlest means possible, such as light washing with 
light pressure (sandblasting destroys the brick by prematurely weathering and eroding 
its surface). When the surface to be painted has a quantity of three-dimensional detail, 
use light or mid-range color values, rather than extremely dark colors, so the details are 
not hidden. When in doubt on an appropriate palette, use shades of one color with one 
highlight color. When choosing colors, take into account the position of the building in 
relation to sunlight. Exterior colors for structures and appurtenances including fixtures 
and signs shall be compatible and harmonious with those of existing buildings in the 
immediate area. Specifically, throughout the district:  


1.  High gloss paints, lacquers, varnishes or other "shiny" non-glazing surfaces shall 
not be used.  


2.  Facade color combination schemes shall be limited to no more than three different 
colors for each structure on a property. (Varying shades, tints or intensities of a 
color shall count as a different color for this purpose.)  


3.  Facade color schemes shall be used consistently throughout the property, including 
on both the upper and lower portions of buildings, and on all facades of a building 
or structure.  


 
(7)(n) Signage. Signs shall be placed at the top of the storefront; painted on the window 


itself; hanging over the sidewalk; or on the edge of an awning.  



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTVOVZODI_S78-517DODEOVDI

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTVOVZODI_S78-517DODEOVDI





1.  Coordinate the placement of signage with adjacent storefronts to avoid visual 
confusion. Large hanging plastic signs and oversized signs are prohibited. The sign 
appears to meet this requirement. 


2.  Signage placed over features on the second story facade are prohibited. N/A 
3.  Select clear, simple lettering styles for easy readability.  The sign appears to meet 


this requirement. 
4.  Consider the color of the building and of neighboring buildings when determining 


sign color.  To be determined. 
5.  Select sign colors that provide contrast between letters and background: a dark 


background with lighter colored letters is most easily perceived by the human eye.  
The sign appears to meet this requirement. 


6.  Where possible, signs shall reflect an individual business message rather than 
advertise a nationally-franchised product.  The sign meets this requirement. 


7.  There are additional signage requirements in article VIII. The sign meets the 
requirements of Article VIII. 


 
4. Once approved, a zoning permit is necessary prior to signage. 


 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
s:\planning\property log folder\101 w. main street\sign submittals 9-25-19\revovation sign review letter.doc 





		STOUGHTON FAMILY DENTAL_ Zoning District Review Doc 07.pdf

		Page 1

		Page 2



		STOUGHTON FAMILY DENTAL_ Zoning District Review Doc original.pdf

		Page 1

		Page 2





		Date_of_Application: September 20th 2019

		Applicant_Name: GREG MARSHALL  - WIS SIGN AND GRAPHICS CO.

		Phone: 608-455-5055

		Applicant_Email: gmarshall@wissign.com

		Owners_Name_other_than_applicant: DOCTOR TATAJE- DENTIST

		Phone0: 608-827-6453

		Subject_Property_Address: 101 W MAIN STREET STOUGHTON 

		Permit_for: OVERHEAD HANGING EXTERIOR SIGN   SIGN DOES NOT MOVE, IS FIXED AND NOT ON CHAINS.

		Proposed_uses: Business sign / location / advertising

		Project_area_for_new_structures_and_additions_sq_f:  SIGN IS  a bit less than 5.25 square feet.

		Estimated_building_construction_cost_including_lab: cost of sign is approx $1900.00

		Estimated_electric_construction_cost_including_lab: 

		Estimated_plumbing_construction_cost_including_lab: 

		Estimated_hvac_construction_cost_including_labor: 

		Estimated_zoning_project_cost_signage_fencing_etc: 

		Construction: Wis Sign & Graphics

		Phone1: 608-455-5055

		Textfield: na

		Electrical: 

		Phone2: 

		Plumbing: 

		Phone3: 

		HVAC: 

		Phone4: 

		Text1: 

		Text2: 

		Text3: 

		OwnerContractor_Signature: Greg Marshall

		Date: 09/20/19








T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2019\10-14-19\Plan Info\The Meadows PP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  October 9, 2019 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the October 14, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
Introduce Preliminary Plat – The Meadows at Kettle Park West. 
This will be an introduction to the proposed preliminary plat at Kettle Park West.  The public 
hearing is scheduled for November 11, 2019.   
 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


September 6, 2019 
 
 
 
City of Stoughton 
Attn:  Rodney Scheel 
207 South Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI  53589 
 
 
Subject: Preliminary Plat - The Meadows at Kettle Park West 
 Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 JSD Project No. 15-7018 
 
 
Dear Rodney: 
 
On behalf of Forward Development Group, LLC (FDG), we are submitting a Preliminary Plat of The 
Meadows at Kettle Park West.  FDG respectfully requests that this Preliminary Plat be placed on the docket 
for consideration by the Plan Commission at their November 2019 meeting to be followed by City Council 
consideration also in November 2019.  Similar to the process followed for the Final Plat of the Kettle Park 
West-Meadows Addition (f/k/a The North Addition), FDG will submit a rezoning and final plat for all or part 
of the territory immediately following the approval and effective date of this Preliminary Plat. 
 
Together with the Final Plat for the Kettle Park West-Meadows Addition and the Certified Survey Map, 
which were submitted on March 12, 2019, this preliminary plat encompasses the remaining undeveloped 
lands within the portion of the Mabie farm annexed to the City in 2013. 
 
As you are aware, planning for the development of this neighborhood has involved extensive discussions 
with the general public, City Staff, City Committees, the Plan Commission, and City Council that have 
considered multiple iterations of land uses, street alignments, park and open space areas, and public and 
private infrastructure systems.  The most recent planning effort to revise and refine the vision for this 
neighborhood began in 2018 with the objectives to create a broader range of housing opportunities for the 
community and to articulate the City’s strategy and framework for logical and effective expansion of the 
park system and infrastructure networks.  These refinements were articulated in the recently adopted 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment and are reflected in the Preliminary Plat of The Meadows at Kettle Park 
West. 
 
When completed, the Kettle Park neighborhood is expected to encompass: 


• 32.7 acres of commercial land use, 
• 295 housing units, 
• 9.9 acres of parkland, and 
• 23.8 acres of open space and natural habitat conservancies. 


 
The neighborhood, when completed, is projected to total over $126,000,000 of assessed value (in 2019 
dollars) for the City’s tax base. 
 
The attachments to this letter, together with the plans, reports and specifications (delivered under separate 
cover), constitute the required submittal information for Preliminary Plats per Chapter 66, Section 66-303 
of the Stoughton Municipal Code. 
 







 
            Page 2 September 6, 2019 


I:\2019\157018\02 Planning\05 Working Documents - Planning\Land Division Submittal\201909\20190906 PPlat FINAL Cover Letter.docx 


During the City’s review of this application, please do not hesitate to contact me, Bill Dunlop, or Dennis 
Steinkraus, for clarification of any of the submitted items and if additional supplemental information is 
needed.  We look forward to continuing development and expanding public and private investment 
opportunities in the City. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
JSD Professional Services, Inc. 
 
 
 
Jim Bricker, A.I.C.P. 
Senior Planner 
 
Enclosures 
 
cc: Bill Dunlop, JSD 
 Dennis Steinkraus, FDG 
 







 
            Page 3 September 6, 2019 


I:\2019\157018\02 Planning\05 Working Documents - Planning\Land Division Submittal\201909\20190906 PPlat FINAL Cover Letter.docx 


Attachments 
See Chapter 66 – Land Division Ordinance, Section 66-303 Preliminary Plat Submittal Requirements.  See 
also documents itemized in September 6, 2019 Transmittal. 


1. Descriptive Information 
a. Preliminary Plat of The Meadows at Kettle Park West 
b. Land Owner: 


Stanley A. Mabie Revocable Trust 
% Matthew Mabie 
15631 Bombay Blvd 
South Beloit, IL 61080 
 


  Developer: 
   Kettle Park West LLC 
   161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 
   Verona, WI 53593 
   608.848.9050 
 
  Engineer: 
   William Dunlop, PE 
   JSD Professional Services, Inc. 
   161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101 
   Verona, WI 53593 
   608.848.5060 
 
  Surveyor: 
   Todd Buhr, PLS 
   JSD Professional Services, Inc. 
   161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101 
   Verona, WI 53593 
   608.848.5060 
 
  Planner: 
   Jim Bricker, AICP 
   JSD Professional Services, Inc. 
   161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101 
   Verona, WI 53593 
   608.848.5060 
 
  Items c, d, e, and g are illustrated on the Preliminary Plat documents 
 
  f.  Proposed lots, units, and land use 
 
   Use  Proposed Zoning Area  Lots/Units 
   


Residential Land Use 
   Single Family  SR-5  11.77-acres 49-lots 
   Single Family  PUD SR-6    9.61  80-lots 
   Multi Family  MR-10     2.57  25-units 
 


2. Existing Conditions 
Items a through i  and k:  Shown on the preliminary plat documents 
Item j (preliminary cut/fill information):  Attached 
Item l and m (names addresses and zoning of adjacent properties): Attached 







 
            Page 4 September 6, 2019 


I:\2019\157018\02 Planning\05 Working Documents - Planning\Land Division Submittal\201909\20190906 PPlat FINAL Cover Letter.docx 


 
 
 
 


3. Proposed Conditions 
Items a, b, d, g, h, and i:  shown on submitted Preliminary Plat documents 
 
Item c (proposed covenants):  Covenants and the specific text of the PUD zoning district(s) 
pertaining to the Traditional Neighborhood portion of the Preliminary Plat will be prepared for review 
after consultation with City staff.  Since this is the first proposed tradition neighborhood design 
project to be considered by the City, staff input is needed to formulate appropriate standards and 
expectations for regulating building mass, location, impervious surfaces, architectural features, and 
infrastructure plans balanced with the overall considerations for housing affordability and 
neighborhood character.  A planning design sketch is attached to illustrate proposed lot and 
building concepts.   
 
Item e and f (Proposed Zoning Plan) 
 


• Block 1, Lots 1 through 24, OL 1 and OL 2 – Planned Unit Development based on the SR-
6 zoning district standards; 4,000-square foot (SF) lot minimum 


• Block 1, Lot 25 – MR-10 
• Block 2, Lots 1 through 36, OL 1 and OL 2 – Planned Unit Development based on the SR-


6 zoning district standards; 4,000-square foot (SF) lot minimum 
• Block 6, Lots 1-10, OL 1 --  Planned Unit Development based on the SR-6 zoning district 


standards; 5,000-square foot (SF) lot minimum 
• Block 7, Lots 1-10, OL 1 --  Planned Unit Development based on the SR-6 zoning district 


standards; 5,000-square foot (SF) lot minimum 
• Blocks 3 through 5 and Blocks 8 through 10 – SR-5 


 
Supplemental information pertaining to item I (sanitary sewer infrastructure design will be submitted 
in the near future. 
 
  







SANITARY SEWER


GAS MAIN


ELECTRICAL LINE


WATER MAIN


PRIVATE ALLEY


PR
IV


AT
E 


A
LL


EY


13’ WIDE MULTI-USE PATH


OAK OPENING DRIVE


A
SP


EN
 C


O
U


R
T


KETTLE PARK WEST - THE MEADOWS ALLEY DESIGN &EXAMPLE LOT 
CONFIGURATION EXHIBIT (1 OF 2)STOUGHTON, WI DATE 09.05.2019


0 15 30 60


NORTH


PROJECT NUMBER • 157018











The Meadows at Kettle Park West 
Preliminary Plat 
Owners, Zoning and Land Uses within 300-feet 
 


PPI   Property Address  Owner/Address   Zoning   Land Use 


N/A   N/A (KPW-Meadows Add’n)   Kettle Park West LLC  SR-5, I   Future Residential, Stormwater Mgt 
0510-014-9700-2     %FDG    PDD 
0510-014-9660-2     161 Horizon Drive 
0510-014-9680-2     Ste 101A 
       Verona, WI 53593 
 
0510-014-1026-2 2600 Jackson Street  Waunakee Investors LLC I   Senior Housing 
       7475 Hubbard Ave 
       Ste 202 
       Middleton, WI 53562 
 
0510-014-1015-2 2500 Jackson   KPW Hospitality LLC  PB   Vacant (Future Lodging) 
       %FDG 
       161 Horizon Drive 
       Ste 101A 
       Verona, WI 53593 
 
0510-014-8436-2 1415 USH 51   Van Horn Properties of   PB   Car Dealership 
        Stoughton LLC 
       PO Box 298 
       Plymouth WI 53073 
 
0510-014-9510-2 1399 USH 51   ALDI, Inc.   PB   Grocery 
       % Ryan Tax Compliance 
        Services LLC 
       PO Box 460049  
       Dept. 501 
       Houston, TX 77056 
  







 
PPI   Property Address  Owner/Address   Zoning   Land Use 


0510-014-9640-2 2600 STH 138   Wal-Mart Real Estate  PDD   Discount Store 
        Business Trust 
       PO Box 8050 
       Bentonville, AR 72712 
 
0510-014-9200-3 3302 STH 138   Gary and Nancy Dvorak  RR-2   Rural Residence 
       3302 STH 138 
       Stoughton, WI 53532 
 
0510-013-9860-6 N/A (west of 3302 STH 138) G & N Land Holdings, Inc. RH-1   Vacant 
0510-011-9765-0 N/A (north of KPW)  1471 USH 51   HC   Self Storage Units 
0510-011-9780-0 N/A (north of KPW)  Stoughton, WI 53532  HC   Outdoor Storage-Landscape Product 
0510-011-97950 1471 USH 51       HC   Retail Lawn & Garden Store 
 
0510-016-9500-1 3354 STH 138   Shirley Erickson   FP-35   Agriculture 
       842 S. Langley Ave. 
       101 
       Tuscon, AZ 85701 
 
0510-012-9500-2 3339 Rutland-Dunn Tn Line Rd David Nelson   FP-35   Agriculture 
0501-011-9070-4     3339 Rutland-Dunn Tn Line Rd. 
       Stoughton, WI 53532 
 
0510-0111-9320-0 1497 Oak Opening Drive Dwight and Debra Pautz RM-8   Agriculture 
       1497 Oak Opening Drive 
       Stoughton, WI 53532 
 
0510-014-8473-2 1431 USH 51   Kunes Stoughton UCL   PB   Auto Repair 
0510-014-8451-2 1423 USH 51    Property LLC     Auto Sales   
       1234 E. Geneva St. 


Delavan WI 53115 
  







 
 
PPI   Property Address  Owner/Address   Zoning   Land Use 


0510-011-6364-5 N/A (across from 1480  Stoughton Lumber Co. Inc. HC   Vacant, Stormwater Mgt 
   Oak Opening Dr.)  3188 Deer Point Dr. 
       Stoughton, WI 53532 
 
0510-011-6427-9 1480 Oak Opening Dr.  RHD Properties LLC  HC   Plumbing Contactor 
       1480 Oak Opening Dr. 
       Stoughton, WI 53532 
 
0510-013-8000-8 N/A (west of KPW)  Stanley Mabie Rev Trust FP-35   Agriculture 
0510-014-9046-2 N/A (east of 3302  % Matthew Mabie  RH   Agriculture 
   STH 138)   15631 Bombay Blvd      
       South Beloit, IL 61080     
    
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

































